

**BYLAWS OF THE**  
**SAN DIEGO COUNTY TRACK STARTERS ASSOCIATION**  
**A CALIFORNIA NONPROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION**  
**(Draft 4/18/2022)**

ARTICLE I

CORPORATE NAME, OFFICES, AND FISCAL YEAR

Section 1. CORPORATE NAME. The name of this California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation is San Diego County Track Starters Association (the “Association” or the “corporation”).

Section 2. PRINCIPAL OFFICE. The principal office for the transaction of activities and affairs of this corporation shall be in such location within San Diego County, California, as the Association’s Board may establish from time to time. The Board may change the principal office from one location to another within San Diego County, California, and such changes of address shall not be deemed an amendment of these bylaws.

Section 3. FISCAL YEAR OF THE CORPORATION. The fiscal year of the corporation shall be July 1 through June 30.

ARTICLE II

PURPOSES AND OBJECTIVES

Section 1. OBJECTIVES AND PURPOSES. The specific purpose of this corporation is to provide quality track and cross country starting and officiating services, to maintain and strive to improve such services through education and training programs; to promote fair play and sportsmanship among people involved in track and field and cross country meets, and to encourage good fellowship among members of the Association and others interested in track and field and cross country.

Section 2. MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION STATUS. The corporation is a nonprofit mutual benefit corporation organized under Sections 7110-8910 of the California Corporations Code, and is not organized for the private gain of any person.

Section 3. FEDERAL AND CALIFORNIA TAX EXEMPT STATUS. This corporation is organized and operated as a business league in accordance with Internal Revenue Code, Section 501(c)(6), and California Revenue & Taxation Code, Section 23701(e). Notwithstanding any other provisions of these bylaws, the corporation shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that do not further the purposes of the corporation and shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on by a corporation exempt from federal and state income tax under those laws.

Section 4. CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS. Unless the context requires otherwise, the general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions of the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law (California Corporations Code, Sections 7110 and following) shall govern the construction of these bylaws.

Section 5. RULES OF PROCEDURE. Robert's Rules of Order, Revised, shall govern all meetings of the Members, Directors, and Committees except when such rules conflict with California law or these bylaws. The Secretary/Treasurer shall be the Association parliamentarian and make all procedural rulings.

### ARTICLE III

#### MEMBERS

Section 1. DEFINITION OF MEMBER; CLASSES OF MEMBERSHIP. As used in these Bylaws, the term "member" shall refer to any person that is a Probationary Member, a Certified Member, or an Honorary Member, as defined below. Any member must comply with all eligibility requirements that the corporation's Board may establish from time to time, including the payment of dues and attendance at mandatory meetings.

(a) A Probationary Member shall be a person who has applied for membership, has been approved by a majority of the Board, and is being trained in the rules governing track and field and being mentored by a Certified Member. A Probationary Member shall not be entitled to vote or hold office.

(b) A Probationary Member shall become a Certified Member upon completing the first year training course and such other requirements as may be established by the Board and upon a three-fifths ( $\frac{3}{5}$ ) affirmative vote of the Board.

(c) Honorary members are those who have been so identified by the Board because of their service to the Association. Included are those people who wish membership in the Association, but do not elect to participate in the activities of the Association. An honorary member shall be exempt from payment of dues, and shall not be eligible to hold office or vote.

Section 2. REGULAR MEETINGS. Meetings of members shall be held at locations in San Diego County, California, or by electronic transmission, as may be designated by the Board. The annual meeting of members shall be held each year toward the conclusion of the track and field season on a date and at a time and place designated by the Board. At each annual meeting, the positions of directors and officers whose terms are then expiring shall be filled by elections and any other proper business may be transacted.

Section 3. SPECIAL MEETINGS. A special meeting of the members may be called at any time by the Board, by the President, or by five percent (5%) or more of the Certified Members. Requests for special meetings shall be filed with the Secretary/Treasurer and shall state the intended purpose of the meeting.

Section 4. NOTICE OF MEMBERS' MEETINGS. All notices of meetings of members shall be sent or otherwise given in accordance with Section 5 of this Article III not less than ten (10) nor more than ninety (90) days before the date of the meeting. The notice shall specify the place, date and hour of the meeting and (i) in the case of a special meeting, the general nature of the business to be transacted, or (ii) in the case of the annual meeting, those matters which the Board, at the time of giving the notice, intends to present for action by the members. The notice of any meeting at which directors or officers are to be elected shall include the names of nominees intended at the time of the notice to be presented by the Board for election, pursuant to Section 7511(a) of the Corporations Code of California.

Section 5. MANNER OF GIVING NOTICE. Notice of any meeting of members shall be given either personally or by first-class mail, electronic mail, or other written communication, as allowed by law, charges prepaid.

Section 6. QUORUM. Three-fifths (60%) of the Certified Members of the Association, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Association's members.

Section 7. ADJOURNED MEETING AND NOTICE THEREOF. Any members meeting, whether or not a quorum is present, may be adjourned from time to time by the vote of the majority of the Certified Memberships represented at that meeting.

Section 8. VOTING. Only Certified Members shall have the right to vote on matters affecting the Association, including the election of directors. At all meetings of members, every Certified Member entitled to vote shall have the right to exercise its vote, with one vote per Certified Member. Such vote may be by voice or by written ballot; provided, however, that all elections for directors must be by written ballot.

If a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of the majority of Certified Memberships represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on the matter shall be the act of the members, unless the vote of a greater number of memberships is required by the California Corporations Code..

Section 9. ACTION WITHOUT A MEETING. Any action which may be taken at any regular or special meeting of members may be taken without a meeting if the Association distributes a written ballot to every Certified Member entitled to vote on the matter. If approved by the Board, the Association may send that ballot and any related material by electronic transmission pursuant to Corporations Code Section 20 and responses may be returned to the Association by electronic transmission pursuant to Corporations Code Section 21. That ballot shall set forth the proposed action, provide an opportunity to specify approval or disapproval of any proposal, and provide a reasonable time within which to return the ballot to the Association. Approval by written ballot pursuant to this section shall be valid only when the number of votes cast by ballot within the time period specified equals or exceeds the quorum required to be present at a meeting authorizing the action, and the number of approvals equals or exceeds the number of votes that would be required to approve the proposal at a meeting at which the total number of votes cast was the same as the number of votes cast by ballot.

Ballots shall be solicited in a manner consistent with the requirements of the California Corporations Code. All such solicitations shall indicate the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirement and, with respect to ballots other than for the election of directors, shall state the percentage of approvals necessary to pass the measure submitted. The solicitation must specify the time by which the ballot must be received in order to be counted. A written ballot may not be revoked.

Section 10. PROXIES. Voting by proxy shall not be allowed..

#### ARTICLE IV

### CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND DIRECTORS

Section 1. NUMBER AND QUALIFICATIONS. The Board of Directors ("Directors") of the Association shall consist of five Certified Members: The President, the Vice-President, the Past-President, and two At-Large Board members.

Section 2. PROCEDURE FOR ELECTING OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS.

(a) At the annual membership meeting each year, the Certified Members of the Association shall elect the President, Vice-President, and Secretary/Treasurer, to serve during the subsequent year. Also, at that meeting the Certified Members shall elect one At-Large member to the Board, to serve for the following two (2) years.

(b) Periodically, prior to the final general membership meeting of the year, the Secretary/Treasurer shall notify the membership of the coming elections. All Certified Members in good standing who wish to be candidates for an office shall notify the Secretary/Treasurer at least ten (10) days prior to the election of the office(s) for which they wish to be a candidate. No candidate shall be placed on the ballot without their consent.

(c) Unless the acting Vice-President declines to serve, their name shall automatically be placed on the ballot for President for the following year.

(d) There shall be a separate election for each position and the elections shall take place in the following order: (1) President; (2) Vice-President; (3) Secretary/Treasurer; (4) At-Large Board member. No candidate may be elected to more than one office. Thus, if a candidate has been nominated for more than one office and is elected to an office, their name shall be removed from the ballots in the remaining elections for that year. For example, if Candidate A has been nominated for Vice-President and also has been nominated for the At-Large Board member position and Candidate A is elected to the office of Vice-President, their name shall be removed from the ballot relating to the At-Large position.

(e) For each election, the Secretary/Treasurer shall distribute a ballot with the names of the candidates, in alphabetical order, seeking election. If there is only one candidate for a particular office, he or she may be elected by a voice vote without the necessity of circulating written ballots.

(f) In order to be elected to an office, the candidate must receive a majority of the votes cast. If no candidate receives a majority on the first ballot, there shall be a runoff between the two candidates receiving the most votes. Ties in any of the elections shall be broken by lot by the President.

(g) The Secretary/Treasurer shall maintain a record of the election results and all returned ballots shall be retained and shall be available to the Board at the next Board meeting.

(h) A Board member may not serve more than five years in succession.

(i) In the event of vacancies on the Board, the candidate receiving the next highest number of votes in the Board election shall be appointed to the unexpired term of the Board member whose position was vacated. The same procedure shall be followed in the event of subsequent vacancies.

(j) Results of the elections shall be announced and the persons elected shall assume their offices at the annual Association Banquet, if one is held, otherwise prior to July 1 of that year.

Section 2. GENERAL POWERS. The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed, and all corporate powers shall be exercised, by or under the direction of the Board of Directors.

Section 3. DUTIES AND PERFORMANCE. Without limiting the general powers described in Section 2 of this Article, the directors shall have the following duties and powers, as well as the authority to perform any and all duties imposed on them collectively or individually by law, by the Association's articles of incorporation, or by these bylaws, including:

(a) Appoint and remove, employ and discharge, and, except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, prescribe the duties and fix the compensation, if any, of all committees, officers, agents, and employees (if any) of the Association;

(b) Supervise all committees, officers, agents, and employees (if any) of the Association to assure that their duties are performed properly;

(c) Meet at such times and places as required by these bylaws;

(d) Conduct, manage and control the affairs, transactions, and services and activities of the Association, including the implementation and enforcement of policies, codes of ethics, rules and regulations for the governance of the Association and the performance by the members of their duties ~~in performing their duties~~ as track and field and cross country officials.

(e) Upon approval by three-fifths (3/5) of the Board, borrow money and incur indebtedness for the purposes of the corporation and to execute and deliver, in the corporate name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations, or other evidence of debt and securities.

(f) The At-Large Board members shall perform such duties as shall be assigned by the Board.

Section 4. INITIAL APPOINTMENT AND TERM OF OFFICE. The members of the Board as of the initial meeting of the Board shall be those persons whose names are attached to these bylaws as Exhibit A. Those directors shall serve until the election of their successors.

Section 5. COMPENSATION. Directors shall serve without compensation except that, as may be specifically agreed by the Board in advance, they may be allowed reasonable advancement or reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.

Section 6. PLACE OF MEETINGS. Meetings shall be held as designated by the Board of Directors. Any meeting, regular or special, may be held by electronic mail, conference telephone, electronic video screen communication, or other communications equipment. Participation in a meeting through use of conference telephone constitutes presence in person at that meeting.

Section 7. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the the President, the Vice-President, the Secretary/Treasurer, or by any two directors, and such meetings shall be held at the place, within the County of San Diego, designated by the person or persons calling the meeting, and in the absence of such designation, at the principal office of the corporation.

Section 8. NOTICE OF MEETINGS. Regular meetings of the Board may be held without notice. Special meetings of the Board shall be held upon forty-eight (48) hours' notice delivered personally or by electronic mail or telephone, including a voice messaging system, facsimile and electronic mail. If sent by mail, notice shall be deemed delivered upon deposit in the mail. If sent by facsimile or electronic transmission, notice shall be deemed delivered upon confirmation of transmission.

Section 9. WAIVER OF NOTICE AND CONSENT TO HOLDING MEETINGS. The transactions of any meeting of the Board, however called and noticed or wherever held, are as valid as though the meeting had been duly held after proper call and notice, provided a quorum, as hereinafter defined, is present and provided that either before or after the meeting each director not present signs a waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meeting, or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents, or approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

Section 10. QUORUM FOR MEETINGS. For the transaction of any business except adjournment, a quorum shall consist of the majority of the authorized number of directors. Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws or in the articles of incorporation of this corporation, or by law, no business shall be considered by the Board at any meeting at which a quorum is not

present

Section 11. MAJORITY ACTION AS BOARD ACTION. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board, unless the articles of incorporation or bylaws of this corporation, or provisions of the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law, particularly those provisions relating to appointment of committees (Section 7212), approval of contracts or transactions in which a director has a material financial interest (Section 7233) and indemnification of directors (Section 7237(e)), require a greater percentage or different voting rules for approval of a matter by the Board.

Section 12. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS. Meetings of the Board shall be presided over by the President, or, in his or her absence, the Vice-President or, in the absence of each of these persons, by a chairperson chosen by a majority of the directors present at the meeting. The Secretary/Treasurer of the corporation shall act as secretary of all meetings of the Board, provided that, in his or her absence, the presiding officer shall appoint another person to act as secretary of the meeting.

Section 13. ACTION BY UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT WITHOUT MEETING. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board under any provision of law may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the Board shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. For the purposes of this Section only, "all members of the Board" shall not include any "interested director" as described in Section 7233 of the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law.

Section 14. VACANCIES.

(a) A vacancy on the Board shall be deemed to exist at the occurrence of any of the following:

- (i) On the death, resignation, or removal of any director.
- (ii) The declaration by resolution of the Board of a vacancy in the office of a director who has failed to attend at least three (3) consecutive Board meetings without an excuse acceptable to the Board in its reasonable discretion; provided that at least one (1) of such absences shall have occurred after the Board has provided the absent director with written notice of the possibility of having the director's position be declared vacant if the absent director fails to attend a subsequent Board' meeting.

(b) Except as provided in this Section, any director may resign, which resignation shall be effective upon receipt of written notice by the President or the Secretary/Treasurer, unless the notice specifies a later effective date for the resignation. No director may resign when the corporation would then be left without a duly elected director or directors in charge of its affairs.

(c) Any director may be removed, without cause: (i) if the corporation then has fewer than fifty (50) Certified Members, by the affirmative vote of the majority of the total number of the corporation's Certified Members at a special meeting of members

called for that purpose, or at an annual meeting of members; or (ii) if the corporation then has fifty (50) or more Certified Members, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Certified Members present at the annual or special meeting of members at which the matter is considered, at which a quorum is present. Any vacancy caused by the removal of a director shall be filled as provided in subsection (d), below.

(d) Unless the vacancy is filled pursuant to Article IV, Section 2(i), the Board shall fill any vacancy; provided, that if the Board fails to fill the vacancy, the Certified Members may fill that vacancy. A vacancy created by the removal of a director under subsection (c), above, shall be filled by the approval of the Certified Members.

Section 15. NON LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS OR OFFICERS. The directors shall not be personally liable for the debts, liabilities, or other obligations of the corporation. Further, except for transactions described in Sections 7233 and 7236 of the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporations Law, or any action or proceeding brought by the California Attorney General, a person who performs his or her duties as a director or officer in accordance with these bylaws shall have no liability based upon any alleged failure to discharge that person's obligations as director or officer, as applicable, including any acts or omissions which exceed or defeat the corporation's public purpose.

Section 16. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND OTHER AGENTS. To the extent that a person who is, or was, a director, officer, employee, or other agent of this corporation has been successful on the merits in defense of any civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative proceeding brought to procure a judgment against such person by reason of the fact that he or she is, or was, an agent of the corporation, or has been successful in defense of any claim, issue, or matter, therein, the corporation shall have the right to indemnify such person against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the person in connection with such proceedings.

If such person either settles any such claim or sustains a judgment against him or her, then the corporation shall have the right to indemnify such person against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts reasonably incurred in connection with such proceedings, but only to the extent allowed by, and in accordance with the requirements of, Section 7237 of the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law.

Section 17. INSURANCE FOR CORPORATE AGENTS. The Board may adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase and maintenance of insurance on behalf of any agent of the corporation (including a director, officer, employee, or other agent of the corporation) against any liability other than for violating provisions of law relating to self-dealing (Section 7233 of the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law) asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against such liability under the provisions of Section 7237 of the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law.

## ARTICLE V

### OFFICERS



Section 1. OFFICERS. The officers of the corporation shall be the President, the Vice-President, and the Secretary/Treasurer. Any number of offices may be held by the same person except that the Secretary/Treasurer may not serve as the President or chairperson of the Board.

Section 2. QUALIFICATION, ELECTION, AND TERM OF OFFICE. The President, Vice-President, and Secretary/Treasurer shall be elected by the Certified Members as described in Article IV, Section 2, of these Bylaws.

Section 3. SUBORDINATE OFFICERS. The Board of Directors may appoint such other officers, committees, or agents as it may deem desirable, and such officers shall serve such terms, have such authority, and perform such duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 4. VACANCIES. Except for officers whose vacancies are filled in accordance with Article IV, Section 2(i), any vacancy caused by the death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or otherwise, of any officer shall be filled by the Board. In the event of a vacancy in any office other than that of President, such vacancy may be filled temporarily by appointment by the President until such time as the Board shall fill the vacancy. Vacancies occurring in offices of officers appointed at the discretion of the Board may or may not be filled as the Board shall determine.

Section 5. DUTIES OF PRESIDENT. The President shall be a director of the corporation, and is the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall, subject to the control of the Board, supervise and control the affairs of the corporation and the activities of the officers. The President shall also serve as the chairperson of the Board. He or she shall perform all duties incident to his or her office and such other duties as may be required by law, by the articles of incorporation of this corporation, or by these bylaws, or which may be prescribed from time to time by the Board.

Section 6. DUTIES OF VICE-PRESIDENT. The Vice-President shall be a director of the corporation. In the absence of the President, or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice-President shall perform all the duties of the President, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions on, the President. The Vice-President shall have other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by law, by the articles of incorporation, or by these bylaws, or as may be prescribed by the Board.

Section 8. DUTIES OF SECRETARY/TREASURER. The Secretary/Treasurer shall be a non-voting member of the Board. The Secretary/Treasurer shall have such duties as outlined and directed by the Board and shall be responsible for the conduct of Association business, including notification of meetings and taking minutes; handling Board and Association correspondence and communications to the membership; developing and maintaining Association rosters and records; and maintaining Association finances, including accounts receivable. He or she is authorized to sign checks; develop an annual budget and a year-end financial statement for approval by the Board; make financial reports to the Board and membership at least annually regarding the financial status of Association funds. The Board may appoint subordinates to assist the Secretary/Treasurer in his-or her duties. The Secretary/Treasurer may be compensated for services as determined by the Board. The Secretary/Treasurer shall be elected each year in accordance

with Article IV, but shall not be subject to the five year limitation imposed under Article IV, Section 2(h).

## ARTICLE VI

### COMMITTEES

Section 1. COMMITTEES. The President, with Board approval, may appoint and remove committee Chairpersons and Members. Committees shall perform such duties as outlined by the Board and shall be responsible to the Board for their performance in such duties and responsibilities. Committees shall serve during the term of the President.

## ARTICLE VII

### EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS, DEPOSITS AND FUNDS

Section 1. EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS. The Board, except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, may by resolution authorize any officer or agent of the corporation to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable monetarily for any purpose or in any amount.

Section 2. CHECKS AND NOTES. Except as otherwise specifically determined by resolution of the Board, or as otherwise required by law, checks, drafts, promissory notes, orders for the payment of money, and other evidence of indebtedness of the corporation shall be signed by the Secretary/Treasurer.

Section 3. DEPOSITS. All funds of the corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

## ARTICLE VIII

### AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS OR ARTICLES

Section 1. AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS. Subject to these bylaws or any provision of law applicable to the amendment of bylaws in the Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law, these bylaws, or any of them, may be altered, amended, or repealed and new bylaws may be adopted or approved by a three-fifths ( $\frac{3}{5}$ ) vote of a quorum of the Certified Members.

## ARTICLE IX

## PROHIBITION AGAINST SHARING CORPORATE PROFITS AND ASSETS

Section 1. PROHIBITION AGAINST SHARING CORPORATE PROFITS AND ASSETS. No director, officer, employee, or other person connected with this corporation, or any private individual, shall receive at any time any of the net earnings or pecuniary profit from the operations of the corporation, provided, however, that this provision shall not prevent payment to any such person of reasonable compensation for services performed for the corporation in effecting its public purpose, provided that such compensation is otherwise permitted by these bylaws and is fixed by resolution of the Board; and no such person or persons shall be entitled to share in the distribution of, and shall not receive, any of the corporate assets on dissolution of the corporation. On dissolution of this corporation, the Board shall cause the assets herein to be distributed to another corporation with purposes similar to those identified in the Articles of Incorporation.

Section 2. PROHIBITION AGAINST LOANS OR GUARANTEES. The corporation shall not lend any money or property to nor guarantee the obligation of any director or officer.

Section 3. PROHIBITION AGAINST SELF-DEALING. The Board shall not cause the corporation to enter, directly or indirectly, into any contract or transaction with any director of this corporation or with any corporation, firm, association, or other entity in which one or more directors of this corporation has a material financial interest or in which one or more directors of this corporation are otherwise involved, unless all of the following apply:

(a) the material facts regarding the financial interest of such director(s) in the contract or transaction or the involvement or financial interest of such director(s) in the other corporation, firm, association are fully disclosed in good faith and noted in the minutes, or are known to all directors of the Board prior to the Board of Director's consideration of such contract or transaction;

(b) before authorizing or approving the transaction, the Board considers and in good faith decides after reasonable investigation that the corporation could not obtain a more advantageous arrangement with reasonable effort under the circumstances;

(c) a majority of the Board by a vote sufficient for that purpose, without counting the votes of the interested directors, authorizes or approves the contract or transaction in good faith; and

(d) the transaction is in fact fair and reasonable to the corporation at the time of its entry and the transaction is entered into for the corporation's benefit.

**SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION OF BYLAWS**

I hereby certify that I am the Secretary/Treasurer of the San Diego County Track Starters Association, a California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation, and that the foregoing Bylaws were adopted and constitute the Bylaws of said corporation effective May 24, 2022.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this 5<sup>th</sup> day of June, 2022.

By: Gary MacDonald  
Gary MacDonald

**EXHIBIT A**  
**INITIAL DIRECTORS OF THE**  
**SAN DIEGO COUNTY TRACK STARTERS ASSOCIATION**  
**A CALIFORNIA NONPROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION**

Richard Beebe, President

Bradley Ducat, Vice-President

Gary MacDonald, Secretary/Treasurer (non-voting member)

Mike Andrews, At-Large Member (Term expires 2022)

Eric Lodge, At-Large Member (Term expires, 2023)

Dale Fleet, Past President (Replaced Mark Malec, the immediate past President, deceased)